STEPBACK INTO THE PAST
AT THE

Circa 1820
Ashville, Alabama

The John Looney House is the only re-
stored two-story double-dogtrot
pioneer log home in Alabama.

Restored by the
St. Clair Historical Society



Bedroom ( Ustais)

Front Room Fireplace

VISITORS WELCOME

Saturdays and Sundays 1-5 p.m.

ADMISSION

Adults - $2.00 Children - $1.00
Under 6 - Free

\ Group Rates - One-half admission price

A

For more information about touring the
John Looney House, contact hostess:

Inez Franklin
- Route 1, Box 790, Ashville," AL 35953
Telephone (205) 594-7849

ENJOY OUR ANNUAL FALL FESTIVAL
AND PIONEER CRAFTS SHOW
2nd Saturday of October

Homemade Instruments Spinning Wool

OTHER HISTORICAL SITES
NEAR ASHVILLE INCLUDE:
John Inzer House Confederate Museum

Ashville Museum and Archives
(located in Ashville Library)

St. Clair County Courthouse
Ashville Masonic Lodge building
Numerous historical homes
For more information contact ....

Ashville Library - (205) 594-7954
P.O. Box 187, Ashville, AL 35953



In the year of our Lord, 1813, General
Andrew Jackson brought an army of volun-
teers into what is now Alabama with orders to
subdue the hostile Creek Indians. Among
Jackson’s men were John Looney and his son,
Henry, who helped build Fort Strother on the
Coosa River and fought in the Battle of Horse-
shoe Bend. During this time John Looney fell
in love with this beautiful country and resolved
to move his family to this new land.

Late in 1817, John and his family left
Marion County, Tennessee and traveled to
Alabama. An Indian territorial grant signed by
President James Monroe allocated eighty
acres to the Looneys in Beaver Valley on the
western banks of the Coosa River. John and
Rebecca and their seven children worked hard
all winter setting the place to rights. But in the

spring an unexpected freshet brought disaster

when it flooded their home. Invading mos-
quitoes and sickness forced them to under-
take the tremendous task of dismantling and
relocating to higher ground. And the house
stands there today -- a perfect example of
pioneer architecture.

On September 16, 1972 the Looney
House property was deeded to the St. Clair
Historical Society by Colonel and Mrs. Joseph
S. Crietz. It was furnished and officially
opened to the public on November 23, 1974.
Today the house is much as it would have
been during those pioneer days. You step
back into the past as you tour the rustic two-
story log home with its authentic replicas of
rope-slat beds with straw and feather mat-
tresses. Examine the buttermilk painted cup-
boards, hand-hewn rafters and the hand-
pressed bricks. Historical documents and
other 19th century artifacts aptly portray the
rugged life of the pioneer.

AS YOU TOUR THE PIONEER LOG
HOME ENVISION THE LIFE OF THOSE
BYGONE DAYS .....

THE WOMEN TENDING STEW OVER
THE COOKFIRE, MEN LABORING IN
THE FIELDS AND CHILDREN DOING
THEIR DAILY CHORES.

Ladies by cookfire in kitchen

Local Bed and Breakfast Inns

Roses & Lace Country Inn
P.O. Box 852, Ashville, AL 35953
Telephone (205) 594-4366 or (205) 594-4660

Beason House Open 7 days a week
Route 1, Box 521, Steele, AL 35987
Telephone (205) 594-7878

Overnight camping
Legion Town - A wild west town replica.
Legion Town Campground
Route 1, Steele, AL 35987
Telephone (205) 594-7867




Pine Harbor to hos&
local sailing club g\ :
_PELL CITY, Oct. 15 = The .
Pine :Harbor Yacht Club will
host “the Birmingham Sailing
Club, the Dixie Sailing Club
and the Muscle Shoals Sailing
Club at its first annual Pine
Harbor; Regatta Sunday.f

Approximately 50 sail boars
are expected to participate in
the event, ' e

Races - will “be  held - and
awards “will ‘be .presented 1o
the outstanding skippers of
the race. Tony Besaulniers,
public relations officer for the
club, said the regatta
promises {0 be one of the
most colorful water sports
events held in Alabama.

g e T e e




BY PAT HOU’I’Z News correspondent
; PELL CITY
, If you hve in Alabama you don’t -have to ‘be a
millionaire to enjoy spectacular natural beauty — moun:
tains, lakes; forests and miles of unspoiled scenery.
- There.are places. like Pell City — less than an hour's
drive from Birmingham — that can make
you -believe that all of America has not
gone to the dogs. ‘
This:little town of only a few thousand.
people bustles with actmty yet its streets
are tree-lined, there are. signs ‘4 dozen
eggs—§1” and you can find a parking place
“downtown’’ any time day or night.

" Hundreds of people bring thexr boats to
Pell City to get them repaired. When you
see the boat ‘marinas with craft 'stacked .
three high, waiting for tune-ups-and paint -
jobs, you wonder if-all the stories you have
heard: about the depression are really true.

MRS.HOUTZ -

ALTHOUGH PELL CITY is .small and tree shaded, the

St.. Clair ‘County Courthouse is modern and ‘airconditioned.
" Nearby Riverside, even smaller, boasts a spanking new,
modern brick Town Hall.

A day - or two visiting around the area convinces you the
citizens ‘have found the best of two worlds — natural beauty
and economic liveliness.

There are places like Tollie’s Grocery Store whlch does

Mon., Sept. 6, 1971 Tlte Birminghune News —39

;"‘a roarmg business and the Pell Cxty Steak House = where

the service is equal to or better than i in many of the finest
eating places in the country.

There is an old shed standing alongside a dllapldated
house on a. side street. Inside the shed stands a 50-year-old

Ford. The wheels are made of wood and there are lantems

on -the front. 'The old Ford lb covered with years of
accumulated dust.:

“THE OWNERS have had the car standing there on blocks
for decades — they have been offered as hxgh as $6,000 for
it. Visitors from Birmingham stop almost daily to ask if the
old car is for sale..
: “No ma’am]! That car ‘ain’t for sale!” a barefoot
youngster playing outside will tell you if you look in and
wonder if they reahze what a valuable collectors gem they
have.. .
- Pride i in ownershxp of the old car.is obvxously worth\ -
more “than $6, 000 to: the little working family who have
inherited it from grandparents
Other sights in Pell City are prosperous vacationers
who came to spend a day or weekend boating, swimming or

sitting in - air- condltloned motel TO0mMS peermg out ‘at ‘the
breath-taking scenery.

THERE. ARE lots for sale advertised at $100..
It is easy to take for granted some of the small towns in
Alabama like Pell City. But we should appreciate them

more. They are a part of Americana that we ought to look
at and savor while they last.
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OLD STAGECOACH




point or destination:
* Courthouse at Ashville.” Su

Old Stagecoach Inn (1852)



: 'estabhshed by acts of Congress.

" Some of these had their starting

~ point or destination: “St. Clair

: thouse at Ashvxlle ’* Such
assed M. :

is said

3

~staunch The. bricks of the tw
chnmneys have ‘an excitin
quality,-a soft purplish tone. It

that, when the wagons
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: moth~eaten mules
‘mended shafts -
Wagons, r
-buggies, ox-carts
-of - them ~ ‘
stagecoach drs wn by fur sleek
- spankmg horses. .

. Intheearly days of statehood
'many postal " roads
-established by acts of Congress.
Some of these had their starting
point or destination: “St. Clair

- Courthouse at Ashvﬂ]e " “Such

an act, passed May 13, 1820,
.established a road frorn Ash:

ville to Huntsville, by ~way of

“Bennett’s store.”

Ashville had a poSt offlce and

so did ‘Bennettsville (Vmcent

Bennett’s: store). The only stop - '

‘betwegn Bennettsvxlle and Ash~

‘mlghtj}

were

1 sturdy and
staunch The bncks of the two
chlmneys have an exciting
quality; a soft. purphsh tone. It -
is said, that, when the wagons

~brought them in from Georgia,

master builder Richard Crow |
had the ced under watexj

for days and then




ST cLAmxmsrom‘c‘:ALTcuR

Dally Bread’

: BY MATTIE Lo ‘ laborious task it- was to G
TE SUE cnow : buxld a dam across a stream‘inorder
- ¢ water power to operate the.
they traveled and

i
on for a number of years :
b‘ it by the Gibson

11 fam y of Ashvﬂle aynd' is
. 0~m11es southeast of :

buyaloaf of bread for 50 S
or buy a box ‘of corn
ix which Tennessee Ford
; s is- “pea—plckm -good.”
But a sad thing that today’s
Jgeneratxon ‘will ‘never know what S
e orn bread was hk




 ST. CLAIR HISTORICAL TOUR

Daily Bread’ ]

o Wha a labonous task it ‘was to
build ¢ dam across a stream in order
10 have, ater power to operate the:

_APRIL 17,1975




property and nu.

property of Mi
' Eugene A. Davis
cellent repalr an




ses

0ple who built . h f property and numerous Iaves pects to be met by a hostess in
id cleared these acres R illips 7 Re jedi  hoop skirts. Time seems to have
\ilies from Tennessee,  first lived on Canoe Creek near by Reuben in 1856. Theu- graves . stood still, and the house 1
‘and - the Carolinas: - 'Rebecca Sfather Jack Watkms . are in the Hopewell cemetery © serene. in its own past The
on. became h 1 ed - Theold log. house was home for - --people who have lived in 'thxs
ind their children in- he - Philips s :
ed. Ashville was their years. It , f j in  loday it-reflects. the hospltahty‘
center; they attended elght miles from Ashvil - and “1 ‘epair as - zof ante-bellum times. ,
I churches there, and = {hree m,lesf reensport ‘
sir sons - to. Ashville '
7. Many of these land
illedimportant county split shmgles

~ L ‘ ravnng knife. The e they

arolma o Ashvﬂle N prospered, accumulating homestead ‘and they lived there
w 5 _until long after the C1v11 War'
| :




~ST. CLAIR HISTORICAL TOUR

APRIL 17, 1975

as the big spring Whlch "
h is still spoken of as

el Hoke, and here he
day known as the Inzer‘

. Moses Dean was one of Ashville’s f
just across the street from the

fore the Clvﬂ Wa

partner and thefxrm name. was changed fo DEAN AND BROWN.

that rer

nains to ‘remind us of th -emporium of yesteryear s
hing from candles to coffi s could be purchased i is.
To: most citizens of the




Thxs house is k:
‘built in 1852 by Mc
land here in 1825,
‘today Supplies As]
Dean’s Spring. Mi
mamed Miss Eliz
lived untﬂ 1852 wl
house:

Moses Dean was
~just across the stre
‘stone building on
known as BY ERS

August ne EdWard
: and . somet

here everythmg f

The Rock.” To mg
Rock”’ brings to mj
, cmzens it has a hapy
sent one of hxs‘ cl

The Rock’” must
‘by. 26 x 42" There




ode hors
with “The Rock.

poses. Many ti1
when an ambiti
- ability. Thereis

- talk to his frienc
. while, but he wil

_Convention at M
_years'of age anc
Secession. Judge
- Army, attaining
~ Constitutional Cc

““ sent to Montgom:
- St. Clair County
Judge. His fathe
-Deacon-in the ‘As
Superintendent.
The Dean-Inze
“has two graceful
pilasters are squ
the two fluted D
before the war b
the two other pil
‘Reconstruction T
capableof maki
had the square v
doors with blow
perfect touch to t
~on either side of |
the ground up, in
The house was
yard which lay a
history it has bee

- brick is hidden.

~ Inside, the roo
_nishings are inta
‘winter and cool d
woodwork retain
The lawn-and
shrubs, colorful ;
love andcareoft
Five grandchi
spendid anti-bellt
.The Inzer Hou
‘Places on Januar




- whom rode horse-back. Mr. Partlow returned after weeks of labor o
”thh “The Rock.”’
c Roek must wexgh n rly a ton
' 11y

er Home (1852)

as 1ts dxmensmn are 2

Moes Dean died in 1855 and ‘soon afterwards Ehza began to !
‘ jdlspose of her Ashville property. When the war-was over she moved

her family to. Jacksonvxlle to be near

the Hoke famlly It was =

hortly after the war that Judge Inzer came into possession of the .

fyears of age and the youngest delegate
“'Secession. Judge Inzer served with dis

Army, attaamng the rank of Lt. Colonel.

, 1861. He was twenty-51x
to sxgn the Ordinance of
nctlon in the Confederat

‘He was:a delegate to the; :

: VConstltutlonal Conventzons of 1861 and 1875, respectlvely, and was.

metxme dumng 1ts long -

as been pamted and thus the beauty of the hand—presse

1y of the annque fur
omfort easy to heat in

spmng uulbs aynd statel

by-gone days. k
, ldren of Judge I







e two young men in his

e name of Looney, ;‘ I

ide of the Coosa
n 1814, Jack and
1 ith the help of
; John disposed of

holdmgs and i

. vourthouse  in. Ashville shows
the land was entered 'in the

: :;ame of the father,
: ;ooney : S

Thexr two. story log house was

‘tompleted " by 1820
Liooney, who brought his wife

~ with him from Tennessee, built

s ‘home some. three-quarters
of a mile. from the house that
s nof married;

,Mrs.‘ J.
John .

Jack -

witha few‘ crude tools b

e
homes of native matemals that
have stood for 150 years.

story that has inspired: the ‘St.
Clair Historical Society and

other interested citizens into
restoring it ‘as nearly: as
possible to its Original condition
as.a county museum; now open

“to the public.
" .In March of 1972, Col. and
then

<R, Creltz,

newcomers to St. - Clair County,

“offered the old log house and the
land on whlch it stands—with
~enough extra for  parking—to

the county or. to- any historical

organization..: which would .

pledge to “have ‘it properly

‘ restored and used as a museum,

- And while many meetings had
s.been held around the county for

by . Governor..

-restored replica of
nnmg of St Clair

~December the ‘Looney.
as been open to vxsxtorsf

y and Sunday from
:00. Mrs.. Anna V.
Jackson is hostess and special

“group  rates:are avallable‘

Regular admission to the house
is $1.00: However, groups with

~len or more in number may be_
admmed for .50 cents each.

“In February of this year, the‘

‘Looney House was placed on the:
_ National Register of Historic

Places. The certificate, signed
George C.
Wallace, was presented to the
Society in ceremonies on

fa her ”:ﬁmd‘ TR ‘?’?éhits‘ﬁ’*‘*’:*’cbncerning s 2 sathes» s Sundays.: yeebruaxw: 15 *i%ﬁ}mu Ty
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St. Clair News-Aegis

FIRST GRAND JURY

One of the most interesting pzctures in the News-Aegis sertes of old prints of St Clair County is.the one..

“above. It shows the members of the First Grand Jury ever organized in the Southern Judicial Division of St.

Clalr The picture was made in 1902, shortly after the courthouse was built here and after Pell Czty was made

‘a bmnch\:ounty seat and the Southern judicial division of the county was created.

Names of the jurors listed on the picture include, Thos. D. Courson, Wm. Murrick, W. J. Smlth Sumter‘: ;‘

Cogswell, foreman, John W. Moore, J. H. North, S. . Hare, N. A. Butterworth, J. W Abercrombte J.R.
Rowland, Jas. Harmon, R A Greene L. A. Bradford, D. R. Griffith and W C. Alverson, J- E. North was

balsz
Do you have any old prmts? Pictures of school, church or family groups, or any other znterestmg old.cuts.

;The News-Aegis would Izke to print all such ptctures in the county. They will be promptly returned to the

“owner after printing.




R PR

~ THURSDAY MAY 14 1964

OLD ONE from ~ce Phillips, ‘unidentified, Joe name unknown, Tee Graham, first name unknown, Ta Day,
he ‘the News-Aegis Stone, Alton Brown, unidenti- Mae Luker, Bessie Duke, Ber- Tnes Thomas, Clara Spruiell,
files. This: picture Wa'S"loaned‘ fied, ‘Ralph Renegar, Mabel tie Mae Neal, Ruby Zackie, Ok -(Mrs. Hughie Dickey), Vanire
to the News-Aegis Dby ‘Mrs. Bowen, Flossie Stephens, (Mrs. . lie Owens, unknown, Pearl Le- Walker, teacher; J. D. Steph-
Tindsay Smith, _ John W. Singleton), Helen Mi- vans, Stevans last name, first - ens, Laney . Bain and Laney
Duke. They are from ] ront  kul, Ruth Zackie, unidentified. name unknown. 3Srd ToW; Bu-  Graham. This. picture . was

Robert McClellan; Claren-. “2nd row: A Bowman girl, first bert Pear, last name Stevens, made at the old Hall. Hill

‘ e e : : : school about 1918,
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L wa=The Pell City Deﬁ()t was once located on‘Fir.st Avenue ,_'S\O'uth.f Many residents still remembe:
>potand whata{x:\immttantrole it played in the city’s history. . o .

O SPRINGS RESORT=-One of the most popular vacatation spots in St. Clair Cotinty was the Cook Spring’
rt hotel, Mountain' View. The resort, built in 1883, drew visitors from far and near. One of the main attraction

. the six mineral spﬁngs_ that some say would improve a person’s health. Other activities at the resort include:
/ling, croquet, lawn tennis, hunting, fishing, boating, swimming, mountain climbing and dancing the night away t
music of a siring band.. _ o R P '










Ashville Citizens Excited
Aboﬂt Inzer House

Ashville citizens are excited about
the restoration of one of Ashville’s

best loved landmarks - The John W. -

Inzer house. Many who knew and
are related to the Inzer family are
willing and ready to have a part in
the restoration. They hope that
members of the SCV will give them
the opportunity of being involved in
this community effort.

Below is an article written by
Marie Tuck who was af the time
(1975). correspondent for the St.
Clair Observer.

When Marie Tuck was Ashville’s
reporter for the St. Clair Observer,
on November 6, 1975 she wrote
about the Ashville Bicentennial
Day. Closing her story of the occa-
sion, Marie had this to say:

"This correspondent’s own Bicen-
tennial Thought for the Week."

Miss Sally V. Inzer’s home here in
Ashville holds more history per
cubic foot (yes, floor, ceiling, walls -

all) than any other place this side of
the Smithsonian. And her generos-
ity in sharing it with those who are
interested in the preservation of our
historic past is something for which

she should be commended. Her
home was on the Bicentennial Tour
on October 27. The crowd came by
bus, in cars, and on foot, and many
wanted to linger - some asked if they

- could come individually later.

Assisting Miss Inzer as hostess to
this group for the occasion were
Mrs. Lee Gibbs, Mrs. Bill Keltner,
Mrs. Buron McBrayer, and Miss
Marie Tuck. :

Miss Inzer will long be remem-
bered for her generousity in sharing
all that she called her own with her
friends. A group of these friends has
ask permission of the SCV - who
now owns the Inzer house - to re-
decorate her (Sally’s) own room,
known as the "green room" in its
original beauty to honor her mem-
ory.

For Sale

1981 Yamaha 750
Only 7,000 miles. $995.00
338-1519 12-9 p.m.
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St. Clair Co. Courthouse
Ashville
1845




Davis Home
Ashville
1832
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Méntgomcry Home
Ashville

1890
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Inzer Home
Ashviile
1852
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Prickett Home
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homes you\ ¥ be seemg and :eadmg aboblt in coming'issue/s

of ‘the Observer. Thls particular one, rvear Ashville, wals . .photgraphlc assist from the ()bservers women’ s edltor
built by John Ashin 1818, isnow knovyn as the “Rowa Dorothy Floyd. ‘
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ST. CLAIR
COUNTY HOSPITAL

PELL CITY, ALABAMA

Patient Information




ST. CLAIR COUNTY

ASﬁ HOUSE (ROWAN PLACE) - Ashville; 1818; two story frame.

ASHVILLE ACADEMY/; Ashville; 1879; one story frame.

ASHVILLE CHURCH OF CHRIST - Ashville; 1879; one story frame.

ASHVILLE MASONIC LODGE - Ashville; 18;8; two story frame.

BYERS (ALAMETH) - Ashville; 1825; two ‘story frame; doric portico,

BROKEN ARROW - Indian Village.

COGSWELL HOUSE - Pell City; c. 18923 two story frame; Victoriane
GOURTHOUSE - Pell City; c. 1900; Itarianate with cupolaj two story.

ST. CLAIR COUNTY COURTHOUSE - Ashville; 1847; two story brick; Greek
Revival; four Corinthian columns with two Corinthian pilasters in front;
four Doric columns 'with square pillasters.

GREEN (JACOB) HOUSE - 12 miles from Ashville; c. 18203 two story frame.
HODGES HOUSE - Ashville; 183533 tw°‘story frame; mansion style; Greek Revival
HARDIN HOUSE - Odensville; 18233 handrhewn logs; fock chimney.

INZER HOUSE = Ashville; 1852; one stéry brick, Greek Revival,

LITAFATCHEE - aboriginal Upper Creek town 8 miles north of present Ash-
ville; in 1813 entire village burned at order of Andrew Jackson.

MARTIN HOUSE - Ashville; 1896; rambling Victorian house with 9 gables,
outbuilding contains smokehouse and servant's quarters.

MERRELL COTTAGE - St. Clair Springs; late 19th century; one story frame.
NEWTON HOME ~ Beaver Valley; 18173 one story log, dog-trot,

OTIPALIN -~ aboriginal Upper Creek town &4 mxles west of Ohatchee in Calhoun
County; name means "Ten Islands,"

PHILLIPS (JACKSON) HOME - Beaver Valley; c. 1842; one story frame; Greek
Revival.

PHILLIPS (JAMES) HOME ~ Beaver Valley, c. 1847 two story frame; Greek Revival.

PRICKETT HOUSE - Ashville; 1861, one story frame; Greek Revival cottage; kit=-
chen originally separate building now connected by hallway.

RAY HOUSE - St. Clair Springs; late 19th century; one story frame.

ST. CLAIR INN -~ St, Clair Springs; P902; one story frame.,

FORT STROTHER - 4 miles west of Ohatichee in Calhoun Countyy erected under
the direction of General Andrew Jackson in November, 1813, as a base for

his campaign against the Creek Nation; site..

MONTGOMERY-SCOTT HOME - St. Clair Springs; 1880!s,one story frame.



COURTHOUSE - Pell City; c. 1900; Itarianate with cupdlag two story.

ST. CLAIR COUNTY COURTHOUSE - Ashville; 1847; two story brick; Greek
Revival; four Corinthian columns with two Corinthian pilasters in front;
four Doric columns with square pilasters.

GREEN (JACOB) HOUSE - 12 miles from Ashville; c. 1820; two story frame.
HODGES HOUSE - Ashville; 18353 two" story frame; mansion style; Greek Revival
HARDIN HOUSE - Odensville; 1823; hand-hewn logs; rock chimney.

INZER HOUSE - Ashville; 1852; one story brick, Greek Revival.

LITAFATCHEE - aboriginal Upper Creek town 8 miles north of present Ash-
ville; in 1813 entire village burned at order of Andrew Jackson.

MARTIN HOUSE - Ashville; 1896; rambling Victorian house with 9 gables,
outbuilding contains smokehouse and servant's quarters.

MERRELL COTTAGE ~ St. Clair Springs; late 19th century; one story frame.
NEWTON HOME - Beaver Valley; 18173 one story log, dog-trot.

OTIPALIN -~ aboriginal Upper Creek town & miles west of Ohatchee in Calhoun
County; name means "Ten Islands,™”

PHILLIPS (JACKSON) HOME - Beaver Valley; c. 1842; one story frame; Greek
Revival.

PHILLIPS (JAMES) HOME = Beaver Valley, c. 1847 two story frame; Greek Revival.

PRICKETT HOUSE - Ashville; 1861; one story frame; Greek Revival cottage; kit~
chen originally separate building now connected by hallway.

RAY HOUSE - St. Clair Springs; late 19th century; one story frame.

ST. CLAIR INN =~ St. Clair Springs; 1902; one story frame.

FORT STROTHER - &4 miles west of Ohatichee in Calhoun County; erected under
the direction of General Andrew Jackson in November, 1813, as a base for
his campaign against the Creek Nation; site.

MONTGOMERY-SCOTT HOME - St. Clair Springs; 1880!s,one story frame.

RISER HOME - Pell City; 1891; two story frame.

TASQUI - aboriginal town on the Coosa River; visited by DeSoto on July 14,
1540 and mentioned in his chronicles.

WAID HOME - St. Clair Springs; late l9th century; two story frame

YARBROUGH HOME =~ Beaver Valley; 1825 three story frame, colonial style with
columns; still owned by original family.
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PELL CITY VIES WITH ASHVILLE AS ST. CLAIR COUNTY'S CHIEF CENTER
Avondale Mill School Has a Fine Building and Football Team
by Frank Willis Barnett

Pell City was first incorporated under the general laws in 1890 by the Pell
City Land and Iron Co. and in 1901 the town site was acquired by the Pell City
Manufacturing Co, and a charter under the general laws obtained in 1902. The
town was naed for George H, Pell, the original promoter,

It is in the southeastern part of St., Clair County, 25 miles east of Birmingham.
It was established as an industrial town on account of the coal and iron mines in
the district. It is on the Southern Railway, the Seaboard Airline Railway, and
was on the Birmingham and Alabama Railroad which connectdd Pell City and Talladega
and was abandoned. It is also on the Bahkhead Highway.

St. Clair County has two divisions, Ashville being in the northemndivision and
Pell City in the southern, with court houses in both places. The topography of the
county and almost impassable roads made it exceedingly difficult for those living
on opposite sides of the mountain ranges to get to one another, nearly all train
lines being routed by Birmingham. |

County Officers Split

For this reason some of the county officers live at Pell City and some at
Ashville. The sheriff and the circuit clerk, however are required to keep offices
in both townse. The tax collector and the tax assessor, however only keep offices
at Ashville. The county superintendent of education also resides at Ashville while
the county farm agent lives at Pell City. The Jjudge of probate makes his home in
Ashville while the circuit clerk lives in Pell City as does the sheriff. It's
quite a mix up when it comes to the town in which the county officers have their
residences,

The county officers are: C. G. Atkins, judge of probate, his chief clerk,
James M. Garrett, the former an Ashvillian , the latter a Pell Citian or whatever
you call a man who lives in the city of that name. Mack Davis, circuit clerk has

a chief deputy at Ashville, Sheriff J. A. Honnicutt is on the job at Pell City;



while T, R. Waverly, chief deputy, has charge in Ashville; M, W. McKinney, tax
collector lives at Ashville; and F, M. Morris, tax assessor, resides at Ragland;
R. M, Reeves, county agent, lives at Pell City; while Carl Q. Baxter, county
superintendent of education, resides at Ashville,

Commissioners Scattered

The Board of Commissioners are also scattered. EdQ Love lives at Pell City;
M, L. Baggett at Whitney; A. L., Box at Ragland and R. T. Ashley at Ragland. The
Judge of the Sixteenth Judical Circuit, C. A, Steele and Woodsom J. Martin both
make Gadsden their home. A. T, Cox, president of the farm bureau lives at Ashville
while W. Ze. Smith, vice president, resides at Cropwell,

As ‘we said before, it is a mix up and we are not sure that we havenft mixed
them up a little more, but as a final say we say that if we lived in St. Clair
County, we would hate to have a date with any of the county officers without first
having our man tied definitely at Ashville or Pell City. TFinding a county officer
in St. Clair is like play the old game "Thimble, thimble, who's got the thimble?"

The court house at Pell City is built on the site once occupied by an old
pioneer, Abner W, Lacy, grandfather of Lieut. Governor Davis, now seeking that
high office., governor of Alabama. Among the other early séttlers at Pell City
were Green G, Evans, John Truitt, and Marion Hazelwood, while the early history
of the towns industrial and business life was connected with the Pell City Manu-
facturing Co. established in 1902 with a capital of $750,000 having 23,000 ring
spindles, 118 cards, 720 narrow looms, four boilers dye finish making denims. Tt
continued for years to be the chief industry of Pell City. A few years back it was
taken over by the Avondale Mills and is today furnishing by far the largest payroll
in the towne

The Avondale Mills of Pell City have, like the other mills of the same name
located in Birmingham, Sylacauga, Sycamore, Alexander City along with the mills at
Eufaula, furnished the employees with good homes, schools, playgrounds, hospitals,

nurseries, and kindergardens. T. He Hennie, vice president, lives at Pell City, as



does the superintendent, J. T. Edwards. The outdoor overseers are C, S. Deason,
Js Fo Adams, T. Mungall, L. R. Thornburg, J. C., Meehan, P, S. Spruiell and J. F,
Harmon while the indoor overseers are V. M, Champion, W. A. Turner, and R. d,
Carlisle. The mill at present has 25,000 spindles and 7L2 looms and uses annually
between 13,000 and 1,,000 bales of cotton in the manufacture of denims. The mill
has 165 houses and about 500 employeese

The Avondale school is housed in an attractive building with a number of well
lighted classrooms, offices and a large auditorium. We were delighted to find so
many window boses filled with flowers in bloom. In the front of the building is an
athletic field, while in the rear is a playground which is well shaded with a most
attrattive outdoor pavillion. We thought we had seen every kind of play apparatus
on the playgrounds of the town and city school grounds in the state, but at the
Avondale Mill School we saw our first "jungle gym" which ssems to offer great
pleasure to the little ones. Superintendent J. T. Edmunds said that when Donald
Comer sent it down to him it looked like a lot of pipe for a plumbing job but
following the specifications, he was finally able to make a most curious looking
structure out of the many pipe lengths.

Homelike Teacherage

The teacherage, kindergarden and nursery, a long one story building facing
the park, for homelikeness can't be beat. We wish to commend Avondale Mills for
making the teachers in the mill school comfortable, The dining room is most attractive
and the 1iving room handsomely furnished. The kindergarden room is large and airy,
and the nursery with its cribs filled with babies is enough to warm any mother's
heart.

Miss M. L. Gunter is in charge of the teacherage and Mrs, T. N. Earman and
Mrs. J. B, Embry are the kindergarden teachers. Miss Odell Jones is in charge of

the nursery,

The Gertrude Comer Hospital is well located on a hill. Tt has 25 beds, offices,



dining room and operating rooms. Dr. R. A, Martin is physician in charge, assisted
by Dr. Stitt. The nurses being Misses Elsie L. Dunn, Ada Mae Tankersly, Lois Deason,
Pauline Rogers and Margaret Carroll,

Miss Tola Roberts is principal of the Avondale Mills School and she is assisted
by Misses Alma Robards, Vicie Heflin, Margaret Camp, Claudine Payne and Gladys Ingle.
Up and through the seventh grade is taught while the enrollment is 267,

The Avondale Mills Band has about 50 membars and it and the orchestra of eight
pieces is directed by George Gunthrope,

Mrss J. D. Locke is president of the Women's Club; Mrs. L. R. Thornburg is
president of the Jolly Girls Club, while C. 3. Deason is president of the Avondale
Mill Athletic Clube. The school goes in for basketball and baseball.

Hugh Black, Principal

Hugh Black is principal of the Pell City High and the grammar school, the two
having around 00 enrolled. In the high school the teachers are Mrs. N, P, Shockley,
Misses Ruth Mize and Myrtle Adams and the music director is Miss Smith, Edwin Young
is coach, assisted by J. A. Baswell,

The football team is made up of the following players: Otis Golden, J. W.
Smith, Charley Ragland, Homer Singleton, Emeris Sisson, Edgard Pepper, Forest Luker,
Joe Bukacek, Thomas Coleman, Walter Layton and lLester Rowe, while substitutes are
Sam Masters, George Stine, Ray Skelton, Robert Beavers, Buddy Love, Joe Kilgroe,
Preston Wadsworth, Harmon Fraim, Cecil Reeves, Otis Lonergan, Louie Hesterly, Dalton
Vaughan and Osmer Sims. The Pell City High is the only school in the county having
a football team.

Gertrude Smith is president of the Live Wire Club and Margaret Johnson is
secretary. Otls Golden is president of the Iy H club. J. L. Ragland is president
of the board of trustees and Mrs. U, C. Martin, secretary,.

The Rev. Claude Rogers is pastor, Baptist church; the Rev., R, B. Ellis, Metho-
dist church; the Rev. C. Hinkle, Episcopal church; the Rev. D. F. Funderburg, Arbor
Baptist church; the Rev. Mr. Hodges, Freewill Baptist church; and the Rev. F. H. Parr,

Wesleyan Yhurch, L. R. Thornburg is worshipful master of the Ben M. Jacobs Lodge of



Masons No. 642, Je We Truitt, secretary, and Dr. U. C. Martin, treasurer,
Mayor Cogswell

Sunter Cogswell is mayor of Pell Cityf W. F. Smith is clerk; the policemen are
Jim Renegar and Re. G, Gravett. The board of aldermen are N. R. Shockely, Dr. U. Co
Martin, We. L. Bramlett, Frank B, Embry and T. J. Abbott. Frank B, Embry is city
attorney. The city owns its water works and the Alabama Power Company furnished
light and power.

Here are the leading industries beside the Avondale Mills., The Coal City Cooper-
age Co., We Be Lawley, president; the Walker County Lumter Co., R. G. Wilkins, manager,
operating a planing mill,and the St. Clair Ice and Coal Co. There are a number of
mills nearby bringing the lumber such as J. M. Florida, Barber Brothers, William
Dixon, Arnold & Barber, J. T. Blackerby, Pruitt Lumber Co,, London Gin Co., and Ja T,
Hazelwood, J. M. Savage and others. The Avondale Mills operate a gin and there are
gins at Cropwell and Easonville,

Pell City has a number of up to date merchants carrying good stocks in well
built and arranged stores,

Capital of 35,000

The Union State Bank has a capital of $35,000; surplus $10,000 and undivided
profits, #l,2hli, T. H. Rennie is president; Pat Roberson, vice president; J. Fall
Roberson, vice president; He. Vandevander, cashier; Adell Hardwick, assistant cashier,
and Sumter Cogswell, Chairman of the board made up of the officers mentioned with
the exception of Adell Hardwick, and the following: Frank B. Embry, McLane Tilton,
Jre Co B. Alverson and J. We Moore,

The Pell City Bank and Trust Company has capital surplus and profits amounting
to $3L,250 and deposits, $163,661.18, The officers are O. L. Ekwurzel, president,
Frank B. Embry and W. A. Savage, vice presidents; H. V., Jones, cashier and James B.
Embry and Willie Jones, assistant cakhiers. The directors being O. L. Ekwurzel,
Frank B, Embry, W. A. Savage, T. J« Harmon, W. D. Carreker, B, L., Love, T. Mungall,
We Te Starnes, He V. Jones and J. F. Carreker,

In thinking of Pell City, one must think of the district for Eden, Cropwell and



Easonville are all near by. There is a fine airport between it and Cropwell.

In thinking of Pell City we always think of Tom Rennie, the Rotarian who for
many years has come into Birmingham to attend the meetings of the Birmingham Rotary
Club. Then in thinking of Pell City it is hard to think about it without McLane
Tilton, the picturesque personality who was known all over the state, a man of
rare culture and travel and a delightful companion who for some years has been
living at Charlottesville, Virginia, being the treasurer of the Alumni Association,
University of Virginia, is greatly missed in Alabama in banking, political, social
and literary circles as he wielded a facile and graceful p en as an editors

Missed Frank Embry

We greatly missed seeing our good friend, Frank B, Embry, who was out of town
as we wanted to get from him the last promouncement of the wise old birds who sit
in cased at "Wisdon Corner" a corner set apart for them on the courthouse lawn
beneath the trees where politics, religion and business are discussed when the
weather is good.

We also missed meeting our friend J. W, Moore formerly of Coal City whose
hospital homeplace have often found pleasure and comfort but we did get to see
our old Baptist "buddy" James M. Garrett, a man who has attended as many Baptist
associations in St. Clair as any other living man and has attended and taken part
in more all day singings than anybody in the county, dead or alive. He helped
us on this story for which we give thanks. We called at the office of the Progress
and found the force busy. This weekly was established more than a score of years
ago. The thing however which we most missed was the state fox hunters convention
which was just over. We got to see Pat Roberson for must a minute when we would
like to have "visited" with him for a season for no one has ever been guest in a

Roberson home will ever forget ita

Copied from The Birmingham News, Nov, 10, 1929



FIRST BAPTIST CHURCH
2309 SegqndmAyenue North
Pell City, Alabama 35125

The First Baptist Church of Pell City was
organized in April, 1903 with 18 charter members
which included familar names of Cameron, Fite,
Cornett, Kilgroe, Smith, Nunnelley and Miller.

The first pastor was Rev. Burns (Given name not
available.) The first church building was con-
~structed in 1904, a three room frame building
with a steeple and bell tower. The front of the
building was rather high off the ground and was
not enclosed for some time. In fact, at a hoqg—
coming in the early 1920's, dinner tables had to
be moved underneath the building when an untimely
rain threatened to ruin the dinner on the grounds.
Later the building was enclosed to form a basement
which was used as a classroom by the first Baraca
Class, whose members used to sing lustily to the
accomplishment of Mr. Richard Wilkins playing an
old pump organ.

The church was a member of the Coosa Valley
Association until 1928 when it transferred to the
St. Clair County Association. The first major
expansion program was undertaken during the time
that Brother Joe Bancroft was pastor (1937-39) and
consisted of class rooms and more space in the
sanctuary. The little white church was used until
1950 but a bigger building was planned long before
that time with regular contributions to thé building
fund during World War II when building materials
were not available. A plan was set up to purchase
a bond a week so funds would be available when con-
struction could begin. The pastorium was built in
1948. Through the years additional lots were added
to the church property until in 1960, the final lot
was obtained and the church owned the entire block.
By 1963, the need for additional educational facili-
ties was seen and the education building was added.
The music and education programs were expanded in
1956 and have continued to be a successful part of
the church program. The program was expanded to include a youth program and the Silent
Friends ministry. 1In 1970, the santuary was remodeled. Groundbreaking services were
held on October 1, 1989 and construction began the following day on a new church minis-
teries building. The three story building houses additional education space, pre—-school,
kindergarter, day-care and a multi-purpose room for basketball, volleyball, large
dinners or banquets and a walking track. The building will also have an elevator making
it accessible to the elderly and handicapped. The construction included re-modeling of
parts of the education building to enlarge office space, make a commercial kitchen and
re-do the fellowship hall.

The membership has grown to over 1,000 and church attendance and parthlpatlon has
continued to grow and develop through the years. - -



L. B. Bowman

L. B. Bowman is shown pos-
ing in front of the old Mineral
Springs -Baptist Church, short-
ly before it was torn down to
make way for a modern new
building.

PASSING OF AN 80-YEAR-OLD

Mr. Bowman, 80, the oldest
member of the church, in
terms of age, moved his letter
from New Hope Baptist in
1937. He married a grand-
daughter of the late W. T.

COUNTY LANDMARK
Poses In Front Of Mineral Springs Church
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Stewart; who - donated  the
land for -the  80-year - old
chureh. I
Construction -began recent-
Iy on the new church, which
will be of modern - brick
construetion, '
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